
 

 
1 

Draft date: 11/15/23 
 
2023 Fall National Meeting 
Orlando, Florida 
 
RISK-BASED CAPITAL INVESTMENT RISK AND EVALUATION (E) WORKING GROUP 
Saturday, December 2, 2023 
8:00 – 9:00 a.m.  
Hilton Orlando Bonnet Creek—Floridian Ballroom G–I—Level 1 

 
ROLL CALL 
 
    
Philip Barlow, Chair District of Columbia William Leung/Debbie Doggett Missouri               
Thomas Reedy California Lindsay Crawford Nebraska 
Wanchin Chou Connecticut Jennifer Li                                   New Hampshire                               
Ray Spudeck/Carolyn Morgan Florida Bob Kasinow/Bill Carmello New York 
Vincent Tsang Illinois Dale Bruggeman/Tom Botsko Ohio 
Roy Eft Indiana Rachel Hemphill Texas 
Carrie Mears/Kevin Clark Iowa Doug Stolte Virginia 
Fred Andersen Minnesota Steve Drutz/Tim Hays Washington 
  Amy Malm Wisconsin 
NAIC Support Staff: Dave Fleming/Julie Gann 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. Consider Adoption of its Oct. 17 and Summer National Meeting  Attachment A 

Minutes—Philip Barlow (DC)                                                                                             Attachment B                                                                                                              
 

2. Receive Updates from the Valuation of Securities (E) Task Force and the 
Statutory Accounting Principles (E) Working Group—Philip Barlow (DC) 
 

3. Hear a Presentation from the American Academy of Actuaries (Academy)  Attachment C 
—Philip Barlow (DC)                                                                                                                    
 

4. Discuss Next Steps—Philip Barlow (DC)                                                                                  Attachment D                                
 

5. Discuss Any Other Matters Brought Before the Working Group 
—Philip Barlow (DC) 

 
6. Adjournment 
 
 
 



Attachment XX 
Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 

xx/xx/23 

© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 1 

Draft: 11/14/23 

Risk-Based Capital Investment Risk and Evaluation (E) Working Group 
Virtual Meeting 

October 17, 2023 

The Risk-Based Capital Investment Risk and Evaluation (E) Working Group of the Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 
met Oct. 17, 2023. The following Working Group members participated: Philip Barlow, Chair (DC); Ted Chang (CA); 
Wanchin Chou (CT); Ray Spudeck (FL); Carrie Mears and Kevin Clark (IA); Vincent Tsang (IL); Roy Eft (IN); David 
Nelson (MN); Debbie Doggett (MO); Lindsay Crawford (NE); Jennifer Li (NH); Bob Kasinow and Bill Carmello (NY); 
Dale Bruggeman and Tom Botsko (OH); Rachel Hemphill (TX); Doug Stolte (VA); Steve Drutz (WA); and Amy Malm 
(WI).  

1. Discussed the American Academy of Actuaries’ (Academy) Principles for Structured Securities Risk-Based Capital

Barlow said he believes these principles are important for the Academy to be able to work on the request for 
developing a proposal to address collateralized loan obligations (CLOs) with the hope that the methodology 
developed can be more broadly applied to other asset backed structures. Steve Smith (Academy) presented these 
principles at the Summer National Meeting and Barlow said the goal is for the Working Group to provide feedback 
and have some agreement on the principles the Academy will use by the Fall National Meeting. Barlow said 
Working Group members were asked for comments in advance of this meeting and suggested addressing the 
principles one at a time. 

With respect to principle 1, page 17 of the presentation (Attachment 1), Barlow said that aspects of RBC that can 
change more quickly need to be recognized and addressed in a more flexible way, which requires more granularity 
and specificity. Smith said the level of precision across the RBC formula should not necessarily be uniform and 
more precision should be in areas that are more easily arbitraged by companies. Barlow agreed. Carmello said 
regulators should be concerned if any company has an understated RBC or overstated surplus and are looking at 
the significance at the company level, not at the industry level. Hemphill said she agrees with Carmello. She would 
also like to consider a prospective view in terms of current allocations and trends. Clark said he agrees with this 
principle. He said material exposure that a company has is clearly a regulatory concern but said it is a question of 
whether it is best addressed by RBC or other regulatory tools. He asked whether there are any principles that can 
address when an issue is material to enough companies that a change in RBC is necessitated. Barlow said the 
number of companies which experience the same issue could escalate very rapidly. Stolte said he agrees with 
Barlow and Hemphill in that what does not seem material today may become the new trend and material in the 
future. Smith said small allocations at the industry level will not avoid regulatory scrutiny. He asked regulators for 
guidance on the extent of materiality which leads to a change in the RBC formula.  

With respect to principle 2, Barlow asked whether the C-1 factor will become higher when assets are marked to 
market in a down market. Smith said the Academy is not suggesting a dynamic C-1 factor, but assets will be marked 
to market, which likely leads to a higher charge. Tsang said the market price already reflects the market's 
perception about the credibility of these assets. He said it will be a double hit to an investor when a depressed 
bond has a higher C-1 charge so he questions having a higher C-1 charge on assets that are marked to market 
because he believes the market price has already provided an additional buffer. Smith said the risk of the statutory 
surplus is what RBC accounts for, which gives regulators comfort that statutory surplus will remain positive. 
Changes in the market value of assets from one period to the next will impact the statutory surplus. If an asset is 
held at the book value, there is no need to worry about the marked to market fluctuations. Tsang said he was 
looking at the default risk of the assets. Carmello said the market is still very volatile at that point and this is why 
the market value is required. Tsang said he asked whether another layer, which is the C-1 charge, is needed for 

Attachment A



Attachment XX 
Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 

xx/xx/23 
 

© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 2 

an already depressed asset value. Smith said the market price roughly reflects expected value whereas capital is 
a tail risk. He said C-1 is meant to measure a reduction in statutory surplus, which is equivalent to default or 
impairment. He asked whether regulators want to make a change to focus on the long-term default or continue 
to have it calibrated to statutory surplus explicitly. Tsang asked Smith whether marked to market assets refer to 
securities such as stocks or assets that are in the other-than-temporary impairment category and have to be 
marked to market. Smith said they refer to stocks or more specifically asset backed securities’ (ABS) residual 
tranches. Tsang asked Smith to clarify what marked to market assets mean in this context. Smith said the Academy 
will work on a clarification. 
 
With respect to principle 3, Clark asked about its implication and the expected impact. Smith said C-1 should be 
an accurate measure of the risk of what an actual asset is. Clark said he is concerned about the implication when 
RBC is only addressed where a measurable capital arbitrage is observed. He asked whether this principle can be 
rephrased as the capital requirements should align with the risk of the investment. Smith agreed with Clark’s 
comment. Tsang asked whether the ABS would be spoiled when the collateral is not rated. Smith said this is 
another implication. He said it would not because whether being rated or not is less important than what the risk 
is. Tsang asked what would happen to the ABS if the collateral does not have a specific C-1 requirement. Smith 
said the capital added up on the vertical slice will not necessarily be equal to that on the collateral because the 
capital on the collateral is not calibrated to the risk while the capital on the ABS is. Tsang said it implies that there 
is no arbitrage when the collateral is unrated and said a clarification would be helpful. Hemphill said she agrees 
and would like to see this principle rephrased. Smith said the Academy would work on updates based on this 
feedback. 
 
For principle 4, Clark agreed with this principle, but is not sure whether it necessarily needs to be a principle. 
Hemphill said she had a similar reaction and would like a clarification of what exactly the concern is to make this 
principle necessarily needed. Carmello said this principle is not needed and suggested getting rid of it. Smith said 
the Academy did not consider the connection between principle 4 and materiality. It was considered in terms of 
calculating the C-1 requirement. Barlow asked Smith to explain how this principle could help. Smith said this 
principle may not be necessary, especially if principle 3 is rephrased. It was intended to further reinforce the idea 
that C-1 on a given security is based on the risk of that security. The underlying motivation was that C-1 capital 
has to align with risk. Clark said the revised principles would cover what was intended by this principle. 
 
For principle 5, Clark said he agrees with this principle, but need to be cognizant of what is being captured in the 
attribute that is used to assign the capital charges. Barlow asked Smith to acknowledge the avoidance of double 
counting. Smith said it is worth independently thinking through how C-1 should be calculated and then looking to 
Credit Rating Provider (CRP) ratings to understand how they are calculated and then looking for differences and 
analyzing those differences. Chou asked Smith to explain how collateral should be treated if the historical data is 
quite limited or this collateral is relatively new. Smith said if dynamism and the collateral pool are to be considered, 
there needs to be some kind of reasonable basis for that. Any claims of dynamism that might be credit enhancing 
need to be justified. Eric Kolchinsky (NAIC) said the question for regulators is marginal trading. Charles Therriault 
(NAIC) said one concern they generally have is that there's no uniformity across CRP ratings.  
 
Barlow said principle 6 sounds straightforward. He asked Smith about its implications. Smith said this principle 
boils down to the goal to align capital with risk. This principle is trying to avoid a strict enforcement of having a 
vertical slice of total capital equal the underlying capital at the expense of getting correct capital at each tranche. 
Barlow said the Working Group would benefit from looking at some revisions of these principles. Hemphill agrees 
on the rephrasing.  
 
Barlow said the right risk measure, which depends upon the asset structure, should be used for principle 7. Smith 
said they will get back to the Working Group with some revisions as quickly as they can. 

Attachment A



Attachment XX 
Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 

xx/xx/23 
 

© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 3 

Having no further business, the Risk-Based Capital Investment Risk and Evalua�on (E) Working Group adjourned. 
 
SharePoint/NAIC Support Staff Hub/Committees/E CMTE/CADTF/2023-3-Fall/RBC Investment Risk 10-17-23 Minutes.docx 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A



Draft Pending Adoption 
Attachment XX 

Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 
8/14/23 

© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 1 

Draft: 8/22/23 

Risk-Based Capital Investment Risk and Evaluation (E) Working Group 
Virtual Meeting 
August 13, 2023 

The Risk-Based Capital Investment Risk and Evaluation (E) Working Group of the Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 
met Aug. 13, 2023. The following Working Group members participated: Philip Barlow, Chair (DC); Thomas Reedy 
(CA); Qing He (CT); Carolyn Morgan (FL); Carrie Mears and Kevin Clark (IA); Vincent Tsang (IL); Roy Eft (IN); Fred 
Andersen (MN); Debbie Doggett (MO); Lindsay Crawford (NE); Bob Kasinow (NY); Dale Bruggeman and Tom Botsko 
(OH); Jamie Walker (TX); David Smith and Greg Chew (VA); Steve Drutz (WA); and Amy Malm (WI). Also 
participating was: Mike Yanacheak (IA). 

1. Adopted its June 14, May 17, April 20, and Spring National Meeting Minutes

Botsko made a motion, seconded by Drutz, to adopt the Working Group’s June 14 (Attachment A), May 17 
(Attachment B), April 20 (Attachment C), and March 23 (see NAIC Proceedings – Spring 2023, Capital Adequacy (E) 
Task Force, Attachment Five) minutes. The motion passed unanimously. 

2. Received Updates from the Valuation of Securities (E) Task Force and Statutory Accounting Principles (E)
Working Group

Mears said the Valuation of Securities (E) Task Force was going to review progress on the work of a definition of a 
designation, and she talked about how the concept of how a designation works within the insurance regulatory 
process. In addition, it was going to discuss a proposal for the Securities Valuation Office (SVO) to have some 
discretion of individual ratings that come from credit rating providers (CRPs) and the ability to challenge those via 
a due process that has been laid out. The Task Force will also discuss the comment letters received and the next 
steps from there. 

Bruggeman said the Statutory Accounting Principles (E) Working Group adopted the principle-based bond 
definition that would become effective Jan. 1, 2025. It also updated Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles 
(SSAP) No. 26R—Bonds, SSAP No. 43R—Loan-Backed and Structured Securities, and some of the references in 
other SSAPs for issuing credit obligations and asset-backed securities (ABS). The project included updating 
Schedule D1 for those that meet the bond definition, which was almost completed by the Blanks (E) Working 
Group. Along with exposing the project issue paper, the Statutory Accounting Principles (E) Working Group also 
exposed an update to SSAP No. 21R—Other Admitted Assets for debt-related securities that do not meet the 
definition. The exposure also included a concept for distributions of the two or four residual tranches that would 
go to the principal value first rather than income until the principal value reaches zero, and distributions will be 
recorded as income afterward. The Statutory Accounting Principles (E) Working Group is going to sponsor the 
Blanks (E) Working Group’s proposal to revise Schedule BA for ABS and debt-related securities that do not meet 
the definition. The Statutory Accounting Principles (E) Working Group plans to have separate reporting lines based 
on why it did not meet the definition under three categories. Part of the Schedule D1 break-up setup will make it 
easier for the RBC schedules to pull collateralized loan obligation (CLO) information directly from blanks. 

Attachment B



Draft Pending Adoption 
Attachment XX 

Capital Adequacy (E) Task Force 
8/14/23 

 

© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners 2 

3. Heard a Presentation from the Academy 
 
Steve Smith (American Academy of Actuaries—Academy) presented principles for structured securities risk-based 
capital (RBC) (Attachment D). There are two main sections of the presentation. The first section, which is on asset 
modeling, covers how granular C-1 should be in terms of asset classes. Smith walked through the C-1 modeling 
flow chart. Mears asked how state insurance regulators should assess the information available in the designation 
if the rating itself is informative enough. Smith said it is interconnected with the second section of the presentation. 
It depends on what C-1 is specifically measuring. Barlow said he is not clear on whether ratings for corporate 
bonds mean the same thing for CLOs. Smith said the Academy does not believe a given rating in terms of the tail 
risk on a corporate bond means the same thing for a CLO. Yanacheak asked whether it is right to say a risk measure 
of the same percentile could have different meanings between two completely different asset types. Smith said 
he agrees with him on this. 
 
For the second section of the presentation, Smith talked about seven candidate principles that would govern 
structured securities for RBC. He explained what these candidate principles are and how they work. Barlow made 
a comment on the first principle. He said it is worthwhile for the Working Group to consider how easy it is to adjust 
the RBC when considering the extent of precision with a particular component. Mears asked a question on the 
fifth principle. She asked whether there is a need to have a separate set of factors for CLOs compared to other 
ABS due to the active management incorporated into the CLO rating. Smith said it depends on the situation. In a 
filing-exempt (FE) world, no additional work would be needed for CLOs to satisfy this candidate principle. However, 
an awareness of this principle should be kept in modeling assets for CLOs individually. Clark asked a question on 
the last candidate principle. He asked whether the Academy asked state insurance regulators to provide feedback 
on whether the conditional tail expectation (CTE) would be a better measure or an endorsement of the CTE (90) 
versus 96th percentile. Smith said that feedback is requested regarding whether the Working Group supports 
using different risk measures for different assets. 
 
The Academy asked the Working Group to provide its feedback on these principles, based on which the Academy 
would work to produce a general framework around the principles. 
 
4. Discussed its Next Steps 
 
Barlow said the next step for the Working Group would be to have a follow-up call to get questions and comments 
from the state insurance regulators and interested parties on the principles presented.  
 
Having no further business, the RBC Investment Risk and Evaluation (E) Working Group adjourned. 
 
SharePoint/NAIC Support Staff Hub/Committees/E CMTE/CADTF/2023-2-Summer/RBC Investment Risk 08-13-23 Minutes.docx 

Attachment B



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



1. Materiality or likely materiality in the future across the industry. Allocations
from a small handful of companies would not justify changes to the RBC
formula.

2. The risk that would be modeled needs to be incorporated in C-1. For
example, illiquidity alone would not be a sufficient justification because
C-1 does not measure illiquidity risk.

3. The expected benefits of a more precise calculation should outweigh the
expected costs of building and using a new model. Costs include both time
and energy spent to build the model as well as the negative effect of added
complexity within the RBC formula.

Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



C-1 requirements on ABS should treat the collateral as a dynamic pool of 
assets, incorporating future trading activities that are reasonable and vary 
appropriately by economic scenario.

Attachment C



Each C-1 factor is based on the asset class’s risk profile. However, the risk 
profile for ABS differs from the risk profile for bonds. Therefore, C-1 
requirements for ABS should be calibrated to different risk measures where 
appropriate.

Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



Attachment C



© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners     1 Revised 12/14/2022 

Priority 1 – High Priority 
Priority 2 – Medium Priority 
Priority 3 – Low Priority 

       CAPITAL ADEQUACY (E) TASK FORCE 
   WORKING AGENDA ITEMS FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2024 

2024 # Owner 2024 
Priority 

Expected 
Completion 

Date 

Working Agenda Item Source Comments Date 
Added to 
Agenda 

Carryover Items Currently being Addressed – RBC IR &E 
IR1 RBC IRE 2 2023 or later Supplementary Investment Risks Interrogatories (SIRI) Referred from 

CADTF 
Referral from 
Blackrock and IL 
DOI 

The Task Force received the 
referral on Oct. 27. This referral 
will be tabled until the bond 
factors have been adopted and 
the TF will conduct a holistic 
review all investment referrals. 

1/12/2022 

11/19/2020 

IR2 RBC IRE 2 2023 or later NAIC Designation for Schedule D, Part 2 Section 2 - Common Stocks 
Equity investments that have an underlying bond characteristic should have a lower 
RBC charge.  Similar to existing guidance for SVO-identified ETFs reported on 
Schedule D-1, are treated as bonds. 

Referred from 
CADTF 
Referral from 
SAPWG 
8/13/2018 

10/8/19 - Exposed for a 30-day 
Comment period ending 
11/8/2019 
3-22-20 - Tabled discussion 
pending adoption of the bond 
structure and factors.

1/12/2022 

10/11/2018 

IR3 RBC IRE 2 2023 or later Structured Notes - defined as an investment that is structured to resemble a debt 
instrument, where the contractual amount of the instrument to be paid at maturity is 
at risk for other than the failure of the borrower to pay the contractual amount due. 
Structured notes reflect derivative instruments (i.e., put option or forward contract) 
that are wrapped by a debt structure. 

Referred from 
CADTF 
Referral from 
SAPWG 
April 16, 2019 

10/8/19 - Exposed for a 30-day 
Comment period ending 
11/8/2019 
3-22-20 - Tabled discussion 
pending adoption of the bond 
structure and factors.

1/12/2022 

8/4/2019 

IR4 RBC IRE 2 2023 or later Comprehensive Fund Review for investments reported on Schedule D Pt 2 Sn2 Referred from 
CADTF 
Referral from 
VOSTF 
9/21/2018 

Discussed during Spring Mtg. 
NAIC staff to do analysis. 
10/8/19 - Exposed for a 30-day 
comment period ending 11/8/19 
3-22-20 - Tabled discussion 
pending adoption of the bond 
structure and factors.

1/12/2022 

11/16/2018 

New Items – RBC IR & E 
IR5 2023 or later Evaluate the appropriate RBC treatment of Asset-Backed Securities (ABS), including 

Collateralized Loan Obligations (CLO), collateralized fund obligations (CFOs), or other 
similar securities carrying similar types of tail risk (Complex Assets). 

Request from E 
Committee, 
SAPWG, VOSTF 

Per the request of E Committee 
comments were solicited asking 
if these types of assets should 
be considered a part of the RBC 
framework. 

1/12/2022 

IR6 2023 or later Evaluate the appropriate RBC treatment of Residual Tranches. Request from E 
Committee, 
SAPWG, VOSTF 

Per the request of E Committee 
comments were solicited asking 
if these types of assets should 1/12/2022 

Attachment D



© 2023 National Association of Insurance Commissioners     2 Revised 12/14/2022 

be considered a part of the RBC 
framework. 

IR7 2025 or later Phase 2 Bond analysis - evaluate and develop an approach to map other ABS to 
current bond factors following the established principles from Phase I where the 
collateral has an assigned RBC.  This project will likely require an outside consultant 
and the timeline could exceed 2-3 years. 

Request from E 
Committee 

Per the request of E Committee 
comments were solicited 
requesting the need for outside 
review. 

1/12/2022 

IR8 RBC IRE 2023 or later Address the tail risk concerns not captured by reserves for privately structured 
securities. 

Referral from 
the 
Macroprudential 
(E) Working
Group

8/11/2022 

Attachment D


	Agenda
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D



